
 

 

AGENDA 

 
 

 

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU GWASANAETHAU 
AMGYLCHEDD, ADFYWIO A CYMDOGAETH 

 
10.00 AM DYDD GWENER, 19 EBRILL 2024 

 
MULTI-LOCATION MEETING - CONFERENCE ROOM 2, PORT 

TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE & MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
Rhaid gosod pob ffôn symudol ar y modd distaw ar gyfer parhad y 

cyfarfod 
 

Gellir ffilmio’r cyfarfod hwn i’w ddarlledu’n fyw neu’n ddiweddarach drwy 
wefan y cyngor. Drwy gymryd rhan, rydych yn cytuno i gael eich ffilmio ac 
i’r delweddau a’r recordiadau sain hynny gael eu defnyddio at ddibenion 

gweddarlledu a/neu hyfforddiant o bosib. 
 
1.  Cyhoeddiad y Cadeirydd   

 
2.  Datganiadau o fuddiannau   

 
3.  Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol  (Tudalennau 5 - 26) 

 10 Ionawr 2024 

 9 Chwefror 2024 
 

4.  Diweddariad ar roi mesurau Cynllun Gweithredu'r Strategaeth 
Gwastraff ar waith (i ddilyn)   
 

5.  Craffu Cyn Penderfynu   
Dewis eitemau priodol o agenda’r Cabinet ar gyfer craffu cyn 
penderfynu (amgaeir adroddiadau ar gyfer yr Aelodau Craffu) 
 

6.  Eitemau brys   
Unrhyw eitemau brys yn ôl disgresiwn y Cadeirydd yn unol ag 
Adran 100BA(6)(b) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972 (fel y’i 
diwygiwyd) 
 



7.  Mynediad i gyfarfodydd   
Mynediad i gyfarfodydd i benderfynu a ddylid gwahardd y cyhoedd 
o'r eitem ganlynol yn unol ag Is-adran 100a(4) a (5) Deddf 
Llywodraeth Leol 1972 a'r paragraffau eithriedig perthnasol o Ran 4 
Atodlen 12a y Ddeddf uchod. 
 
Rhan 2 
 

8.  Craffu Eitem/Eitemau Preifat Cyn Penderfynu   
Dewis eitemau preifat priodol o agenda cyn craffu Bwrdd y Cabinet 
(Adroddiadau Bwrdd y Cabinet yn amgaeedig ar gyfer yr aelodau 
craffu). 
 

 
K.Jones 

Prif Weithredwr 
 
Canolfan Ddinesig 
Port Talbot 12 Ebrill 2024 
 
 
 
Aelodaeth y Pwyllgor:  
 
Cadeirydd: S.Pursey 

 
Is-gadeirydd: 
 

T.Bowen 
 

Cynghorwyr: 
 

C.James, L.Williams, W.Carpenter, A.Dacey, 
R.Davies, N.Goldup-John, S.Thomas, R.W.Wood 
a/ac J.Jones 
 

 
 
Nodiadau:  
 
(1) Os yw aelodau'r pwyllgor neu'r rhai nad ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor 

am gynnig eitemau perthnasol i'w cynnwys ar yr agenda cyn 
cyfarfodydd y dyfodol, rhaid iddynt roi gwybod i'r Prif 
Weithredwr/Cadeirydd 8 niwrnod cyn y cyfarfod.  

 
(2) Os yw'r rhai nad ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor am fod yn bresennol ar 

gyfer eitem o ddiddordeb, mae'n rhaid rhoi rhybudd ymlaen llaw 



(erbyn 12 hanner dydd ar y diwrnod cyn y cyfarfod).  Gall y rhai nad 
ydynt yn aelodau'r pwyllgor siarad ond nid oes ganddynt hawl i 
bleidleisio, cynnig nac eilio unrhyw gynnig. 

 
(3) Fel arfer, ar gyfer trefniadau cyn craffu, bydd y Cadeirydd yn argymell 

eitemau gweithredol sydd ar ddod i'w trafod/herio.  Mae hefyd yn 
agored i aelodau'r pwyllgor ofyn i eitemau gael eu trafod - er y 
gofynnir i'r aelodau ddewis a dethol yma o ran materion pwysig. 

 
(4) Gwahoddir aelodau perthnasol Bwrdd y Cabinet hefyd i fod yn 

bresennol yn y cyfarfod at ddibenion Craffu/Ymgynghori. 
 
(5) Gofynnir i aelodau'r Pwyllgor Craffu ddod â'u papurau ar gyfer Bwrdd 

y Cabinet i'r cyfarfod. 
 
 



Mae’r dudalen hon yn fwriadol wag



- 1 - 
 

100124 

Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
(Multi-Location Meeting - Council Chamber, Port Talbot & Microsoft 

Teams) 
 

Members Present:  10 January 2024 
 
 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor S.Pursey 
 

Vice Chairperson: 
 

Councillor T.Bowen 
 

Councillors: 
 

C.James, L.Williams, W.Carpenter, A.Dacey, 
R.Davies, S.Thomas and R.W.Wood 
 

Officers In 
Attendance 
 

D.Griffiths, C.Morris, N.Pearce, C.Plowman, 
M.Roberts, T.Rees and H.Jones 
 

Cabinet Invitees: 
 

Councillors W.F.Griffiths, J.Hurley, S.Jones, 
S.K.Hunt, S.A.Knoyle and C.Phillips 
 

Observers Councillor Angharad Rebecca Aubrey 
Councillor Suzanne Paddison 
 

 

1. Chair's Announcements 
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. The Chair informed 
members of the passing of Councillor Sheila Penry who was a 
member of this committee and a former chair of the Streetscene 
Committee. 
 
Members observed a minute’s silence as a mark of respect. The chair 
advised that members would have an opportunity to pay tribute to Cllr 
Penry at the next full Council meeting. 
 
The chair advised that in relation to item 3, that officers have advised 
that items listed as a ENV 21, 22 and 23 will be considered under the 
Education, Skills, and Wellbeing Scrutiny committee. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 

Tudalen5

Eitem yr Agenda3



- 2 - 
 

100124 

Cllr Tim Bowen indicated he had a personal interest for Appendix 4, 
Reference ENV7, as his wife works for Gnoll Country Park. 
 

3. Budget consultation 2024/25 
 
 
Members considered the Budget Consultation Report 2024/25 as 
presented. 
 
The Chair outlined that comments from the meeting will form part of 
the formal consultation response to the budget. Members were 
reminded of their obligation as part of the budget consultation 
process to put forward any other proposals for budget savings which 
are not included within the report so that officers can give them 
consideration as soon as possible. 
  
Members were reminded that they should consider the elements of 
the budget which fall under the remit of this scrutiny committee. 
 
Nicola Pearce, Director of Environment gave a brief overview of the 
general proposals as listed in the Budget Consultation Report 
2024/25 and explained the difficult situation the directorate faces in 
relation to achieving a balanced budget. 
 
Members were advised that officers have tried to drive down costs 
and secure with savings first and then for those that aren't covered 
under those strategic savings proposals, Officers would go through 
each of the proposals line by line as identified in Appendix 4. 
  
ENV1  
 
Members asked if the authority is engaging with planning officers to 
identify opportunities to increase value by selling authority buildings 
and land with planning permission. 
 
Officers advised that if the land or buildings have got planning 
permission for alternative use, then it will inflate the price that the 
authority can secure for that asset. That is something officers will 
always do, but there are constraints associated with some buildings, 
such as being on a floodplain. 
 
Officers noted that members have referred to Community Adaptation 
and Resilience Plans (CARPs) in a question submitted before the 
meeting to officers in relation to this. Members were advised that 

Tudalen6



- 3 - 
 

100124 

CARPs don't allow you to just do what you want to just because 
you've got the opportunity to do those. Officers would still need to 
mitigate the impact of flooding, and there will still be uses that you 
cannot put in a floodplain even if you've got a CARP in place. Officers 
advised that when they are ready to release a building or land, they 
will establish what the best use is for that site and what they can get 
planning permission for which will provide the best support for the 
Community and for the economy and possibly for the councils 
housing requirements and for the budget. 
 
These will be considered to make the right decision for the Council at 
that time based on those issues. 
 
ENV4 
 
Members asked about the £185,000 saving that's listed for the next 
financial year on the operating subsidy, members asked what other 
elements make up the saving other than security or income for the 
next financial year? 
 
Officers explained that there are high insurance and security costs 
there, with security guards making up the most of it. This is down to 
the threats that have happened there including a security guard being 
threatened with a machete which meant that the security guards 
would only work in pairs for safety. 
 
ENV8  
 
Officers were asked who they were consulting with in relation to 
public safety and if they had spoken to the police and Thrive? 
Members expressed their primary concern with the policy was the 
safety of young women and girls in the community. 
 
Officers advised that the Council manager for the lighting service has 
met with the police and members of the Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP) and that work is continuing as part of the 
consultations and that the CSP is pulling together a coordinated reply 
for the police and other partners who were involved in that. This will 
come forward as part of the consultation responses in the report on 
the outcome of the consultation. 
 
Members asked if the Council had been forced to switch off lights and 
dimming lights in the past, and what were the results of the dimming 
and the switching off at that time? 

Tudalen7



- 4 - 
 

100124 

 
Members were advised that in the past, there have been discussions 
about this as the authority has had energy issues previously, but it's 
not been formally considered before in terms of switching lights off. 
 
Officers explained that the authority have invested a lot in energy 
saving work including changing the switch gear, changing the types 
of lamps, putting in LEDs and putting in central control systems. 
Officers referenced the report that came to the committee as part of 
going to consultation, that the electricity bill would have been 
£700,000 at the high end if the work hadn’t been done. 
 
Officers explained that they have exhausted that work and there's a 
lot of lamps already dimmed and some double dimmed. This is why 
officers are now talking about dimming the remaining high energy 
lights. The LED lights are now being put in under previous savings 
and officers are trying to get more savings out of previous 
improvements. 
 
Members asked if this is a trial, or will this be the baseline position 
going forward and asked if it was decided to reinstate the light 
dimming to pre-2024/25 levels would the authority be looking to find 
an additional £300,000 in the 25/26 budget? 
 
Officers advised that their understanding is that it will be a baseline 
adjustment. They also advised that if the lights were dimmed or 
switched off part-night, then there was a subsequent reversal of that 
decision, there would be a budget pressure associated with that 
because they'd been a baseline adjustment. 
 
Members noted that there had been a lot of investment in the street 
lighting estate over the years but asked if other business cases are 
being drawn up to invest in LED’s which would allow officers to make 
savings without having an impact on residents as previous reports 
indicated there were still a significant number of fluorescent lamps 
that couldn’t be dimmed further. 
 
Officers explained that there are Salix interest free loans available to 
the Council and officers have submitted business cases and been 
successful. This had led to the replacement of all the lights where 
there is a business case that meets the requirement for that funding. 
 
Members were advised that the fluorescent lights that were put in as 
part of the large-scale renewal are not that energy hungry and the 

Tudalen8



- 5 - 
 

100124 

actual benefit of changing to LED's is quite marginal in terms of 
energy. Officers explained that manufacturers are starting to stop 
making the fluorescent lamps, so the authority has got a rolling 
program to replace those fluorescent lamps and cannibalise the ones 
they replace to use those for parts for other ones. 
 
The fluorescents will get changed over time, but there isn't a business 
case to apply for the money to change those because the energy 
savings just aren't there. 
 
Members wanted to clarify if the large-scale replacement of the 
fluorescent lamps with LEDs in the Sandfields area was done outside 
of the Salix program or out of the authorities’ own investment or if the 
business case had changed in the meantime? 
 
Officers advised that it may have been done as part of the authority’s 
own renewal program, but they would need to check. [Confirmed as 
done as part of SALIX work] 
 
Members enquired how much investigation into the safety of vehicles 
on roads where light dimming has happened and asked officers were 
getting the safety information from. 
 
Officers explained that they employed a consultant in coming up with 
the original proposals and following on from the scrutiny committee 
meeting, the consultant’s report was sent to all the committee 
members. The report sets out all the different aspects that were 
considered in coming up with the proposals. 
 
Members were advised that officers are consulting with the police and 
the CSP because the police are experts in this area. Members were 
informed that every time there is a fatality, officers get a full report 
from the police setting out their analysis of the situation and what the 
contributory factors were. 
 
Members commented that there are a variety of reports online about 
dimming of lights and there are arguments for both views, with most 
saying there isn’t much effect on crime or anti-social behaviour. 
Members wanted to ask whether it was best to review the decision if 
there is a rise in anti-social behaviour. Or to review the decision after 
a period of time? 
 
Officers advised that a lot of the lights are already dimmed, and they 
have been for a long time. Officers felt it would be sensible to keep 

Tudalen9



- 6 - 
 

100124 

things under review and to weigh up all the consultation responses 
that come in and have a review at some point afterwards. 
 
ENV9 
 
Members wanted to clarify if this saving is not dependent on any 
increase in recycling rates or any changes to behaviour from 
residents and is purely a return on investment that's been made by 
the Council. 
 
Officers advised that the £400,000 is being achieved now and it's 
associated with the sorting equipment that's been put in. As an aside, 
the council has the waste strategy where they are trying to grow the 
amount of recycling and where they do that, officers are looking at 
reinvesting money into expanding recycling. 
 
Members highlighted to officers that there had been discussion online 
about changes to a 3 weekly bin collection, which is mentioned in 
appendix 5 as a suggestion. Members asked if the £400,000 was 
dependent on changes like that and changes to recycling rates. 
 
Officers explained that it's not the case and that the saving identified 
in Item ENV 9 is because of the improved sorting that the council is 
now able to do because there isn’t a contamination of different 
materials in one batch. Officers can now secure a better price for that 
recycling which is helping the authority to achieve the £400,000 
additional income. 
 
Members were advised that the waste strategy currently being 
pursued, has got several recommendations aimed at pushing up 
recycling so the authority can achieve the 70% Welsh Government 
target by 2024/25. If the authority can’t achieve that target, then it is 
potentially exposed to financial penalties which means there is a 
requirement to do everything possible to achieve that target. 
 
Officers explained that the indirect impact to the savings target is if 
the council has more recycling which they can sell onto different 
markets, then it will mean an increased income over and above the 
current levels of recycling that the authority is processing through the 
transfer station. 
There will be an indirect impact, but the direct impact which is leading 
to that £400,000 saving is associated with the improved sorting 
equipment. 
 

Tudalen10



- 7 - 
 

100124 

ENV9 
 
The Cabinet member for Streetscene asked officers to give 
assurances to members that any such proposals on three weekly 
collections isn't directly part of the current budget consultation and 
any such proposals will be considered by this committee and the 
Cabinet Board further down the line. 
 
The Chair also asked the Cabinet member or the officers to clarify 
that the current waste strategy does state that the authority will be 
consulting on three weekly collections in this current financial year 
with an implementation date of next year. 
 
Officers advised that there is due to come an update report on the 
whole of the waste strategy, action plan delivery and all the detailed 
work has been completed to identify what the three weekly collections 
would look like in terms of rounds and the important details for the 
internal side of the consultation with trade union colleagues.  
 
Officers also explained that they would have to look at exactly when 
they can consult but they are intending to still do the consultation. 
Officers confirmed that reducing the frequency of the residual waste 
does not form part of the budget proposals or the budget 
consultation, but it is part of the agreed waste strategy that they have 
looked at to be implemented, if necessary, to achieve the 70% 
recycling target and to avoid fines and reputational damage that goes 
with that.  
 
Officers advised that they need to start that consultation as soon as 
possible because there is a feed in time to go through the processes 
of getting all the information together and being ready to do it and to 
report back to committee. This is why officers have had to start it so 
they can complete the consultation and then if the authority needed to 
move to three weekly collections, they could do that but that would all 
be subject to future decisions. 
 
Officers acknowledged that everyone would be closely following the 
performance figures, and that everyone was doing their best to get 
those up along with the other elements of the action plan. If everyone 
can work together with the public the authority can get to 70% and 
that takes the pressure off making changes. 
 
The Chair clarified if the plan is still to go ahead with the consultation 
this financial year as included in the waste strategy, but any positive 

Tudalen11



- 8 - 
 

100124 

financial impacts, if that was progressed in the next financial year, 
haven't been included in the budget meaning any increases in 
recycling that might result of that haven't been built into this and they 
would be a bonus if that did happen. 
 
Officers clarified that any savings associated with it would be 
reinvested in expanded recycling services so they wouldn't be making 
savings by going to three weekly collections because we've been 
reinvesting that money and expanding and recycling services. 
 
Officers explained that there is a potential that if the authority grew 
the recycling it would grow the income, but recycling rates can go up 
and down.  
 
The Cabinet member thanked officers for the clarification that it 
doesn’t form part of the current budget consultation as contrary to 
information that has been put out online and until such time as he and 
Cabinet colleagues make a decision on 3 weekly collections that 
decision will be left until further down the line. 
 
 
ENV11  
 
Members commented that they hoped that the £25,000 saving had 
been from a re training strategy because the damage that the public 
see being done is by the handling of the receptacles by staff. 
Members also wanted clarity on what the evidence of the £25,000 
saving is based on. 
 
Officers advised that the service manager has looked at this and they 
have statistics of how many bins they buy, how many are put out and 
they have got expanded information due to changes to some of the 
questions asked by customer services when people ring to request a 
new bin. 
The public are asked if it is due to the behaviour by the crew. This 
information is being correlated to the crews that are doing the work 
and now officers can do re-educating and talk to the crews with the 
highest numbers of reports. 
 
The service manager must make a judgment because some of these 
breakages are due to a type of bin that was purchased previously 
which have proved to not be robust and aren’t used anymore, but 
they are still in circulation and are still working their way through the 
system and will prove to be more fragile. Officers stated that it is a 2-

Tudalen12



- 9 - 
 

100124 

pronged attack of getting those receptacles out of the system, but 
also tackling the crews that that aren't looking after the equipment as 
they should be. 
 
ENV12 Termination of Neath Canal Public Access Rights Agreement 
on lower section & ENV13 termination of License Agreement on the 
upper section of the Neath Canal 
 
The Chair raised his concern in relation to access to the towpath. He 
asked that given that it is currently an active travel route and that the 
public rights of way for walking do not give access for cycling, his 
concern is that if the council terminates the agreement and then 
seeks to negotiate something afterwards that in that interim period 
there may be a risk that the owner of that towpath closes access if 
there is no public access agreement to sections of it. Or they may 
take steps to stop cyclists if they're only legal requirement, is to 
maintain a public right of way? 
 
The Chair also asked if given the authority had secured significant 
amounts of Welsh Government funding to develop the active travel 
route along the towpath, is the authority under any obligation to take 
reasonable steps to continue the license agreement? 
 
Officers advised that the license agreement relates to the top part of 
the canal towards Resolven in the north of Abergarwed and what the 
license agreement gives over and above the public access 
agreement is access to the water body. Officers advised that there is 
an organisation there that during the summer months’ rent out paddle 
boards and kayaks. What the authority will be doing is negotiating 
with St Modwen for a public access agreement in place whereby the 
authority will maintain as part of councils ongoing maintenance 
programs, the towpath only. 
 
Officers acknowledged that it is an important part of the active travel 
network, but the budget gap is so significant that officers have had to 
look everywhere for savings. Officers said they would like to think that 
the owner, if presented with an opportunity for somebody else to 
maintain their asset which they would otherwise have to maintain 
themselves, they would look favourably upon that. 
 
Officers advised that the authority cannot guarantee a positive 
outcome, but officers will do their best behind the scenes to secure a 
positive outcome because they acknowledge the importance the 

Tudalen13



- 10 - 
 

100124 

canal towpath has. The proposal that they have put forward has been 
suggested because the budget problem is so significant. 
 
The Chair asked to clarify that the liability concern is in relation to the 
license agreement that doesn't really affect access to the towpath on 
the active travel route. The decision on the active travel route towpath 
is purely a budgetary concern over the £35,000 that the authority is 
currently paying so that decision to cut the £35,000 is not because of 
the overarching liability. 
 
Members were advised that the authority has noted that they need to 
trim £35000 from the budget and this is one of the options and that 
they have been forced down this route because the budget problem 
is so hard, and savings have had to be found wherever they are even 
if they are small amounts.  
 
Officers will try and mitigate that through negotiation with the 
landowner where they can get a public access agreement where we 
don't have to pay somebody else to do the work for the authority and 
the authority will do the work themselves. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Economic Growth 
commented that there are two private companies involved and one of 
which has large reserves and have benefited from years of industrial 
use of the canal from local industries but now don’t want to put 
anything into it as a return. He felt that it should be time for them to 
stand up and do things as well. 
 
ENV14  
 
Members commented that school reserves are being wiped out and 
to charge the service back to them even if not a lot of money could be 
a huge amount for some schools that haven't got that facility. 
 
Members asked if schools did go to a private company to get the 
service done cheaper, would it be up to the standard that they 
currently get now with the council, and would it be a risk to the 
grounds of the schools?  
 
Officers advised that good accountancy practice is that the cost 
should go back to where they are, so that everybody knows where 
the spend is and what it’s being spent on. Officers think that some of 
the schools have gone to other contractors before and they've come 

Tudalen14



- 11 - 
 

100124 

back to the council because they know it provides a good service with 
good health and safety. 
 
Members queried if schools do start switching to private contractors, 
would it become a threat to levels of employment of council grounds 
people due to a lack of work coming in. Officers advised that there 
are approximately 190 operational people in neighbourhood services 
and just under natural turnover they can accommodate a certain 
amount of change because it is an aged workforce and there are 
people retiring and turnover all the time, so officers wouldn't see any 
problem with accommodating any change if that happened. 
 
 
ENV25  
 
Members commented that there is a bridge in bad repair on a 
footpath that that has been reported for over a year and has not been 
fixed and that saving money on the budget is all very well but at some 
point, the authority could have liability of someone tripping and 
getting hurt. 
 
Officers clarified that the countryside and access budget is about 
improvements to the surface of the public rights of way including 
vegetation cut back etc. and the question related to structures on the 
rights of way network and there is a separate budget line on that. 
 
Officers are not proposing to cut that budget and the larger structures 
are dealt with primarily by engineering and the smaller structures are 
covered by the countryside and wildlife access team. 
 
In relation to engineering, officers explained they have been doing 
internal reviews of service functions and the proposal from April 
onwards is that the inspection regime associated with bridges and 
structures on the public rights of way will be undertaken by the 
engineering team through the structures team. 
There is no budget per se so they will be able to do the inspection 
work, but where there are structures that will fail public safety access, 
officers we will need to act accordingly, and then they will have to go 
and secure capital funding for the repairs of the larger span, more 
complex structures.  
 
Officers believe they will probably be dipping into the normal revenue 
and capital funding that's for the bridges team to try and support that 
work, so they will be doing less work elsewhere across the wider 

Tudalen15



- 12 - 
 

100124 

bridges’ portfolio, but it's unfortunately the budgetary position that the 
authority finds itself in now. 
 
Officers advised that for retaining structures on the highway network 
there's no specific budget for those and they dip into the structures 
budget to do any emergency works that are needed to keep the 
highways open. This is a building pressure and as they are aging 
structures the problem is not going to go away and it's something that 
officers will have to risk assess and manage. 
 
Members asked about voluntary groups and wanted to know how the 
Friends of Margam Park and friends of the Gnoll, are supervised 
doing work and do they have people in charge of them that are 
watching over what they are doing? The Chair also asked if the use 
of volunteers may help with the situation with the rights of way. 
 
Officers advised that in terms of the Margam Park and the Friends of 
Margam Park, they are contained within a park so there is a 
contained environment and there are significant numbers of staff 
working in Margam Park that have regular engagement with that 
group so there are constant supervision opportunities there.  
 
The rights of way in comparison are thousands of Kilometres long 
and there are only two officers covering it so they don’t have the team 
that Margam Park has or the staff size of the Gnoll. Officers advised 
that it may well be a proposal in terms of trying to put some 
community involvement scheme together in the future, but as a 
directorate for these assets, they haven't got that resource either in 
terms of staff or funding. 
 
Appendix 5  
 
Members were confused why the three weekly waste collections 
suggestion was included in Appendix 5 2023-2024 budget 
suggestions if it isn’t a budget proposal.  
 
Officers explained that they had received criticism from some officers 
and members of the public as to why proposals that they suggested 
previously haven't gone anywhere and officers thought it would be 
helpful for members to see what had happened with some of the 
suggestions that came forward too late to consider for 23/24 budget 
and to show what officers have done, which ones they were taking 
forward and the reasons behind the ones they are not taking forward. 
Officers apologised for the confusion. 

Tudalen16



- 13 - 
 

100124 

 
Appendix 7 
 
Members noted that there was a line around the adjusted building 
opening patterns of the civic centre and it stated that due to some 
nature of the meetings that take place later in the day, political party 
meetings, training and mayor mayoral appointments could be hosted 
elsewhere. Members wanted to know if they would be accommodated 
directly in that.  
 
Officers advised Noelwyn Daniel, Corporate Director for strategy and 
corporate services dismissed this as being an option because those 
meetings need to take place in the evening. 
 
Members asked about the reference to reconfiguration of civic 
buildings to reduce external room hire costs with a target of £100,000 
saving in the next financial year. 
Members asked for clarity on where that is sitting in the budget now 
because it isn't it identified in any of the individual budget lines. 
 
Officers have identified that there may be the opportunity to move 
that sort of work at those sorts of meetings into the Civic Centre 
rather than in external room hire locations. The £100,000 isn't 
included as a budget saving because the facilities within the Civic 
Centre are not available now, so they are being remodelled on the 
ground floor.  
 
No savings have been assumed because officers need to wait for the 
civic centre to be remodelled and they need to see whether those 
meetings do get moved into the civic centres as some of the things 
on the schedule are meetings like parent and toddler clubs they won't 
be going into the civic centre. 
 
Officers will monitor the take up of that next year and if they do see a 
£100,000 saving, or ability to charge to grant then officers will put that 
into the savings schedule potentially for the following year. 
 
There were no additional budget proposals put forward by members 
at the meeting. Following scrutiny, Members noted the report. 
 

4. Urgent Items 
 
There was none. 

 

Tudalen17



- 14 - 
 

100124 

 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Tudalen18



- 1 - 
 

90224 

Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
(Multi-Location Meeting - Council Chamber, Port Talbot & Microsoft 

Teams) 
 

Members Present:  9 February 2024 
 
 
Chairperson: 
 

Councillor S.Pursey 
 

Vice Chairperson: 
 

Councillor T.Bowen 
 

Councillors: 
 

C.James, L.Williams, A.Dacey, R.Davies, 
N.Goldup-John, S.Thomas, R.W.Wood and 
J.Jones 
 

Officers In 
Attendance 
 

D.Griffiths, C.Plowman, M.Roberts, J.Stevens, 
T.Rees, S.Brennan, J Davies, O.Gavigan, 
K.Lewis, C.Saunders, B.Suddell and L.Willis 
 

Cabinet Invitees: 
 

Councillors W.F.Griffiths and S.Jones 
 

   
 

 

1. Chair's Announcements 
 
The Chair noted that Item 15 of the Cabinet board agenda had been 
deferred to a later meeting to gather further information and that 
members of the Scrutiny Committee had agreed to scrutinise the 
following items from the Cabinet Board agenda: 
 

 Item 7: Swansea Bay City Deal - Neath Port Talbot led projects 
update (Supporting Innovation and Low Carbon Growth & 
Homes as Power Stations) 

 

 Item11: Vehicle and Heavy Plant Fleet Procurement 
Programme 2024/25 

 
 Item12: Public Space Protection Order: Aberavon Beach and 

Promenade. 
 
 
 

Tudalen19



- 2 - 
 

90224 

2. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were none. 
 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the meeting held 12/01/24 were approved as an 
accurate record of proceedings. 
 

4. Pre-Decision Scrutiny 
 

Item 7: Swansea Bay City Deal - Neath Port Talbot led projects update 

(Supporting Innovation and Low Carbon Growth & Homes as Power 

Stations) 

Officers provided a presentation updating members of the projects as 

mentioned in the report. 

Members discussed the Net Zero Centre of Excellence (Training Facility) 

specifically in relation to the news about TATA Steel. They referred to the 

requirement of additional training at TATA and the funding TATA have said 

is available for training. Members enquired about the potential for 

upskilling people and if officers were looking at accessing that funding? 

Officers advised that they were actively working with the TATA transition 

board and have put the National Net Zero Skills Centre of Excellence down 

as a project they would potentially seek funding for. This funding would 

support phase 2 of the facility. 

Members clarified if the TATA news would negatively impact any of the 

projects. 

Officers noted that the news from TATA is disappointing as they are a major 

employer in the area both directly and indirectly. Officers are trying to 

assess the supply chain and who is affected both indirectly and directly 

within TATA. Members were informed that the transition board are 

working hard to understand the impact of the TATA proposals. 

Officers explained that these projects become more important because of 

the TATA news and highlighted the Switch Project as an example which 

looks at materials and Research and development (R&D) in the steel 

industry. Members were informed that if TATA go down their suggested 

path of an electric arc furnace, then there will a lot of R&D in working out if 

the materials, they are putting out are correct for the market, which would 

Tudalen20



- 3 - 
 

90224 

mean the Switch facility would be an important part of that. Officers 

advised that the Advanced Manufacturing Centre is scheduled to go onto 

Baglan Energy Park and that will allow local companies to diversify their 

projects and get involved in new markets, particularly those who are 

involved with TATA supply chain, and they may be able to shift production 

and get support along with that and help to kick start the Baglan Energy 

Park. Officers advised that there is a significant tract of land there and they 

are hoping the Advanced Manufacturing Centre can be part of that and the 

technology centre offers space for new buildings and spin outs to develop 

and there are the supply chain opportunities with Homes as Power 

Stations. 

Officers advised that in terms of diversifying the economy and expanding 

the economy, alongside the new work from the Celtic freeport, these are 

very important projects that will help underpin the new parcel of work. 

Members asked if there is any funding to look specifically at terraced 

houses in terms of R&D to find solutions for EV charging connections so the 

authority can help to decarbonise, especially given the challenges that 

terraced houses and older properties will have with charging solutions. 

Officers explained that Nigel Morris, who's leading on this project, 

organized an event back in November at the Tata Steel Training Academy 

where the authority invited several companies who produced the various 

options for on-street charging. This included options such as running 

underneath pavements, or with arms that the reach across a pavement as 

well as fixed charging points in the road. Several companies spoke to 

officers about the variety of options available and Welsh Government who 

were also in attendance said that there was funding available to set up a 

couple of trials within the local Authority. Officers advised that they could 

install a couple of these different technologies to run trials and see which 

performs the best. Officers are actively pursuing different routes of funding 

to support this activity as quickly as possible. 

Members noted that City deal was announced 7 years ago and asked what 

the timescale was on the spend as many projects haven’t started and the 

costs of many of them have gone up in that time. Members wanted to 

know if these should be kickstarted now?  

Officers clarified that whilst the budgets and details of projects were set in 

2017, it wasn’t until 2022 that funding agreement between 

Carmarthenshire County Council and Neath Port Talbot was signed, so 

Tudalen21



- 4 - 
 

90224 

although it looks like a long period of time, there has been a lot of steps 

taken to get to officially launch these activities. Officers agreed that it is 

difficult with large projects where budgets are set years before they start 

because it wasn’t possible to have predicted the events of Brexit, inflation, 

materials cost increases and wars that have affected materials supplies. 

Officers also advised that there is long lead in periods with projects like 

these when working with partners and getting project agreements, final 

designs, and specifications. Officers explained that the Technology centre 

was delivered quite quickly because they jumped the gun a little bit as they 

had other funding that they had to use within a set time. Members were 

advised that it’s about making sure they are the right projects and are 

developed in the right way. 

Members asked a question on Homes as Power Stations (HAPS) relating to 

what elements of the Neath Working Men’s Club Project are being funded 

from the £300,000. Members stated they were not aware of any green or 

environmental credentials to the project and asked if it is this an additional 

element of the project that's being funded? 

Officers advised that all the applications that were put forward, wouldn't 

have been HAPS houses without this funding. So, the funding that's been 

allocated, will enable the houses to be cleaner, greener and more cost 

effective. Officers didn’t have the specifics of that scheme but would come 

back to the members with the specific technology that will be put in at the 

development. 

The chair asked if the slides from the presentation could be circulated 

following the meeting and felt it would be very helpful on the three 

projects that have been funded, if members could have a bit more in-depth 

information.  

The report was noted. 

Item11: Vehicle and Heavy Plant Fleet Procurement Programme 2024/25 

Members noted that a lot of vehicles are being replaced on a like for like 

basis and the committee had spoken previously about the transition to zero 

emissions vehicles. Members asked officers if the like for like replacements 

were because zero emissions vehicles of that type aren’t available or is it, 

they are available but prohibitively expensive. And what life span do 

officers anticipate for these replacement vehicles so that members can get 

an idea of the delay of transitioning to zero emission vehicles it will bring. 

Tudalen22



- 5 - 
 

90224 

Officers advised that life cycle is 7 years for diesel replacements for refuse 

and recycling vehicles and 5 years for shortened mid-range sweepers. 

Officers advised that it would be 9 years for small/medium vans, lorries, 4x4 

pick-ups, and cars. 

In future officers said they will look at the life cycles again, so vehicles are 

purchased over the life of battery warranty on vehicles. That will vary on 

the type of the vehicle. 

Officers clarified that some low emissions vehicles are available on the 

market, and some aren’t. The fleet review will include an assessment of the 

current and future lifecycles in line with the transition programme. The 

small and medium vans will be on course to be transferred over to zero 

emissions by 2025. In terms of larger vehicles particularly the recycling 

vehicles, officers are looking at the replacement of them for low emissions 

vehicles, but the cost factor must be considered, as well as securing grant 

funding streams to facilitate the transition. 

Members acknowledged that the refuse trucks will likely not be replaced by 

zero emissions vehicles for another 7 years due to the lack of availability of 

that type of vehicle. 

Officers advised they have trialled refuse freighters and haven’t found one 

that can cope with the authorities’ geographic circumstances in terms of 

being able to cope with going up and down hills regularly and the weight 

associated with these vehicles. Members were advised that there are some 

hydrogen refuse trucks emerging, but it is early days for this technology and 

having a significant supply of green hydrogen available to run them was 

essential. 

Officers drew attention to the difficulty they are getting with heavy to 

medium vans is that there are issues with payload in relation to carrying 

lots of tools and equipment and the increased weight isn’t quite there yet 

for the battery capabilities. The same issue is there for 4x4s. 

Members asked what happens to ride on mowers or smaller vehicles when 

the authority replaces them. Officers advised that in line with audit 

processes they get two or three valuations from auction houses and then 

select the best valuation and send them there to be sold. The money then 

comes back to the authority to offset the uplift in costs of new vehicles. 

Tudalen23



- 6 - 
 

90224 

Members questioned what the ratio of owned vehicles vs leased vehicles 

was in the fleet. Officers confirmed that only 3% of the fleet is on contract 

hire and that is only done as shorter-term contracts. 

Members welcomed the information provided on the lack of availability of 

the equipment and noted it was not for a lack of trying that the authority 

has had issues when transitioning to low emissions vehicles. 

Members also requested a column in future reports of like for like 

replacements, stating why it is like for like as it would answer a lot of 

questions in advance. Officers noted the suggestion.  

Following scrutiny, members were supportive of the recommendations to 

be considered by Cabinet Board. 

 

Item12: Public Space Protection Order: Aberavon Beach and Promenade 

Members noted the exemptions for disability and impairments in the 

report and asked what was being done to advertise these legitimate 

exemptions. Officers advised that they have advertised at the access points 

to the beach for guide dogs. They clarified that in terms of support and 

assistance dogs, officers have had queries from schools and other 

individuals in relation to autistic children etc who have support dogs. 

Officers have spoken to those owners about when they are likely to be at 

the beach and let enforcement officers know.  

Officers explained that they have looked at advertising more widely and 

having advertisements on the exemptions on the beach front but that does 

bring difficulties with enforcement as enforcement officers have no way of 

disproving if someone has a support dog or not.  

Officers advised that they are aware that they would be heavily criticised if 

someone did have a support dog and were not allowed to take it on the 

beach. Officers will be reaching out to the 13 UK approved assistance dog 

organisations to see if they have a passport scheme with a card so that 

people can show officers that the dog is a support dog. 

Members felt that reaching out to those organisations would be a good 

starting point. Members appreciated the lengthy consultation carried out 

and the considerations taken to the time limits and exploration how they 

could have been implemented even if they didn’t get included as a 

recommendation of the report. 

Tudalen24



- 7 - 
 

90224 

Members commented that more enforcement officers were needed to 

combat unscrupulous dog owners and asked if there is any scope to have 

more officers there. Officers advised that they have a small team and that it 

is one of their priorities and they will be doing focussed enforcement 

activities for a large part of a week in the summer months however this is 

one part of the whole borough that the team covers. 

Following scrutiny, members were supportive of the recommendations to 

be considered by Cabinet Board. 

5. Urgent Items 
 
There was none. 
 

6. Forward Work Programme 
 
The Members of the Committee noted the Forward Work Programme. 
 

7. Access to Meetings 
 
The Private item had been deferred.  
 

8. Pre-Decision Scrutiny of Private Item/s 
 
The Private item had been deferred. 

 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON 

Tudalen25



This page is intentionally left blank

Tudalen26


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaenorol
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 09/02/2024 Environment, Regeneration and Streetscene Services Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes



